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Loch Dhu is a two-story clapboad structure located in upper Berkeley County, South
Carolina. It was probably built ca. 1812-1816 by Robert J. Kirk (1786-1828). (Although
tradition maintains 1816 as the date of construction, recently a chimney brick has been
found to have "1812" inscribed upon it.) The structure rests upon low brick founda-
tions and features a high hipped roof with tall interior chimneys.

The lower front facade consists of two front doors flanked by four evenly spaced windows,
two to a side. Each front door, which leads into a separate front room, has a rectan-
gular transom. A one-story porch, supported by four square columns, extends across the
front. Although the roof and entablature of the porch are original; the floor, columns
and balustrade are later.

The upper facade reveals an off-centered window above the left front door. Probably
the result of an alteration, this window is flanked by two windows on each side. The
side facades feature three windows on both levels. A1l of the windows are 9/9, and
all but the upper side windows retain their paneled shutters.

The rear reveals a two-story modern addition. Completed ca. 1961, this addition houses
a kitchen and den area on the lower level. Originally clapboard, it was bricked over
ca. 1971.

INTERIOR: The original portion of the structure consists of four rooms on both levels.
The first story contains a dining room, drawing room, and two smaller rooms. Only the
front rooms--the dining and drawing rooms--have decorative trim. Both mantels and
cornices in these rooms have gouged festoons, sunbursts, and rope motifs. The wains-
coting in the dining room features stained and grained woodwork; that in the drawing
room was similar but has been painted over.

The upper floor has four rooms divided by a central hall. The floors throughout the
structure are original.

SURROUNDINGS: The structure rests upon an incline, with the Santee-Cooper reservoir
Tocated behind it. Several farm-related buildings are included within the acreage.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Loch Dhu is a two-story clapboard structure typical of the early 19th Century plantations
in the upper St. John's area of South Carolina. It is not known exactly when Loch Dhu
was constructed, but evidence suggests its having been built ca. 1812-1816 by Robert J.
Kirk (1786-1828). Its history begins earlier, however, for the Kirk family settled in
St. John's Parish, Berkeley, during the 18th Century, becoming one of several large
plantation-owning families who were closely connected in terms of social and economic
mores. The Kirks have been recognized as "an old South Carolina family, long prominent
in the affairs of this state...."l

The present structure at Loch Dhu was probably built by Robert J. Kirk (Gideon Kirk,
Roberts father, was residing in St. John's Parish in 1790, at the time of the first
United States Census; however, he is not recorded as having purchased property in the
area until 1794). Although family tradition maintains 1816 as the date of construction
of Loch Dhu, a chimney brick dated "1812" was discovered in 1973.

Robert J. Kirk was a planter, as his father had been, and the 1829 inventory of his

estate includes approximately 47 slaves, as well as hogs, cattle and other farm animals.
His son, Philip C. Kirk, later owned Loch Dhu and continued to farm the lands. The
Agricultural Census of 1860 records his having 550 acres improved and 260 acres unimproved,
cultivating cotton, Indian corn, sweet potatoes, etc. At this time Philip C. Kirk was
also involved in political affairs in the state, being a representative in the South
Carolina House of Representatives from 1854 until 1864. Philip's son, Robert J., served
as probate judge of Berkeley County from 1885 to 1893; in 1894 he became United States
Consul at Copenhagen, remaining until 1897, when he returned to South Carolina to

practice law.

- ARCHITECTURE: Loch Dhu is an excellent example of the Upper St. John's region plantation
house with square floor plan; high hipped roof; tall, square chimneys; two front doors;
and raised, one-story porches. Other examples of this idiom are Lawson's Pond and the
Rocks, a ca. 1800 plantation in Orangeburg County that is listed in the National Register.

Ip.D. Wallace, History of South Carolina, Vol. IV (New York: American Historical
Society, 1934), p. 296.
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LOCH DHU: BERKELEY COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
Verbal Boundary Description:

Borders to the northeast, southeast and northwest on the waters of Lake
Marion and to the southwest on cropland of Loch Dhu Plantation,

Nomination includes three modern outbuildings. ‘—ggéif;;:,,—

’7/2/77



